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TRATNING WEEXEHDS AT FLINTHMM -
Lth/Sth April : 16th/M7th Hay 1 18£RA19th July

Professor M.W. Barley, Chairman

This new venture of the Trust got off to a flying start, Its object wae
to initiatn, members into the technigues of recording old houses. The
introductory lecture was very well sttended, and about 20 members turned
up at Flintham. Thanke to Mr. Myles Hildyard, we were weloomed at the
houges chosen, and were able to use the old brewhouse {(with & roaring leg
firel} as a base.

Members were divided into teams of two, one to measure and one to record;
they were supervieed by one of tha technical mdvisers. The teams

quickly learned how to be methodical and accurate, though seversl return
vizits to houses were necessary for some teams to piek up forgottern
measurements, or to have a second look at & partioular feature. The cald
wae kept at bay by the fire amd freguent cupe of coffee {brewed by

Hrg. Imogen Ekirving).

On the Sunday the teams (sll of theml) returned to the brawhouse to prepare
scale drawings of their houses. fgain there were guick tripe into the
village for yet ancther leck. At the end of the day all but ene of the
teams had finished and handed their work to one of the technical advisers,
Mr. Geof. Turner, whe volunteered to take charge of thes.

Thua the Trust hes made a4 good start on the business of eompiling &
proper record of historic houses in the County.

The gecond wWweckend wae ecually successful end well sttended but we have *
fict finished with Flintham and a further trairing sessicn is plamnsd for®
18th and 19th Jrly. I hope that most of those who sttended the first *
two weekenda will turn out again, to soguire more expertise end to help *
to complete the record of an exceptionally intercating and unspoilt ’
villaeges There will be room for newcomers, o il you missed the firat *
twe make sure to apply for this one. »

B & @ ¥ H =8 @

The wider object of the scheme is to train members and to giwe them the
confidence to record interesting hooges in their own neighbourhood.

I lock forward to hearing that thiz iz happening, and to eselng the records.
We ahall have To arrange meetinga of members tusy in thie way, =so that

they san display their work and discuss their disceveriesa.

The scope is aloost unlimited. For instance, we now have an up-to=date
history of Laxton; Eeee "The open-field villege of Laxton™, being Vol.?
part 6 of The [ast Midland Geagrapher for December 1930 (Dept. of Guography,
Nottingham University, price £1.00), but the houses in the parish have
never been recorded. Tney are obwviously an essential part of the history
of the village, and one dey thet gap must be Tilled.

TEATNING WERKEND - UPTON - SEFTEMBER 19th and 20th

The Truat aleo intends to carry out a
purvey of spnother villape before the
winter sete in and this time we have
chosen Upton. The firet meeting of the
Upten survey will take place on the week-
end of September 19th and 20¢h with a
talk=in on Friday evening at 7.30 in the
¥W.L.A. Centra, Bhakespeare Gtreoet, Nottm.

Flipthan mepbers are welcome vet agoain end
it ig3 hoped that more pecpole will come to
the Upton weektend so that the willsge can be
govered before the winter sete in. It is
haped that, as with Flintham, resesrch can
b parried out during the winter months tao
put histerical facta against the survey
information taken,

L
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PI'DFEI-EE» RE]_mrt by Hike Pringle. c.ik-ﬂrdj_mtur

Since the lest report om the PBuildings at Kisk Register, s further 12
buildings have been &dded, making & total of 78. At the Technical
Advisers Panel meeting in February a start was made on considering the
list of buildings on the regicter and each one was allocoted to Bn
Advi=zer. I have since heen receiving a steady stream of reports back,
gainly indicating that the fesrs have been well Tounded.

After the next meeting of the Technicel Adviserg I hope that
congideration wilil have been given to all the properties listed, and
that T will then be in & pesition to draw up all thoee coneidersd to be

at riek, with an indicoticn of the gravity of the risk.

are at considerable risgk. Hr. Severn has drawn up 1ists of all the

project for the recording of these buildings, and possible moves

whish must be brought to the public's attention, we seem to have &

rectoration of these particular buildings will not only bte to the
benefit of the county, but may also be the heat way of demonstrating
our intentions and of firing the public's imagination.

Unfortunately I am still mot im 8 position to cireculate the list of at
risk buildinge to Trust members, tut I hope to do =0 just mas soon as
the Techniesl Advieera have sompleted their deliberstions.

-
One of the most netable features is the large number of doveootes which
dovecotes in Heottinghamshire that he is aware of. 1 fully support his
towards sesistance with their resteocration. Fhereas Hottinghamshire has,
in sommen with any county, 8 stock of waluable, but neglected, buildings
particularly rich eollection of dovecoctes. All efforts to help in the

Bolno -

N T
LISTTING

Ancther 37 buildinps of the 1914-1939
paricod have been lizted to =add to the 50
buildinge of the interwsr era already
rrotected. The list includes such London
lapdmarks sz Barker's of Kensington, the
Lorchester and Savey hotels, Broadcacting
Heuse and YWaterloo Bridee. ceven achurches
throwghout the country are added to the
list along with offices, shops,; houees snd
hospitels.

Heritage Outlock Harch/April 1981.

AVARD TOR
NOTTTRGHAM ARCHITECTS

Hettingham Architects, Dudding,
Hiddleton & Mutch were the Architecis
for o building which has been given o
major commendation in the 1980 Awards
made by the Dusiness & Industry Panel
for the Enviromment. The building
iz the new ares headguarters for the
Naticnal Cosl Board at Edwinstowe.

At a ceremony held at the Hoyal Society
of Arts ¥r. Tom King, M.F., Minister
for Llocal Government and Envircnmental
fervices, presented the sward to the
agwner of the building and HMr. J.LK. Wood,
Director of the North HNotts. Ares,

HCE, received it on behalf of the NCB.

The FPanel was established in 1974% as a
follow=up to Eurocpesan Architectural
Heritage Tear.



The tenth contributicn to the series by

Adrian Henstock, the County Archivist, describing basic
documentery eocurces for tracing the history of smaller
houeee in Nottinghemehire built befaore .1900;

-+ + + + + o + -+ ot

To continue the second part of the seriss describing the history of selected
loeal buildings, this issue's example is of a privately-owned Georgian town
house which during the 19th century passed into semi-pubhlic hande.

L, COUNTY HOUSE, HIGH PAVEMENT, NOTTINGEAM

(a) Architectursl lescripticnm
County Houwze, which now houses tha Nettinghamshire Record Cffice, stands
on the north side of High Pavemont opposite Shire fHall in the heart of
the ILace Market area of Kottingham. The old part of the house is 'L
shaped, with large principal rTooms on the sireet frontape and emaller
rooms in the rear wing. dt - the rear is a yard with steps leading to the
former terrsced garden, now & car park. the henze ig of three etoreys
with hipped roafa and a projecting eaves pornice, and the main building
comprises eight bays of windows. The exterior is rendered and somswhat
plain, offzet only by a Georpian dooroass with fanlight and flanked by
(reproduction)} Georgian railings, surmounted on the first floor by a
projecting iron Hepency balcony. To the east of the main buildine is a
two-Etorey extension with a classical pedimented frontage in stone;
the wvery high uppor atorey with thres long windows is supported on two
Oresk Doric columns.

Inaide the main building is & panslled entrance hall, out of which leads
A good Georgisn open-string staircese of esrly 10th century style. Thi=
gives way after the Tirat floor to an olldptically-curved cantilevered
stalr of Pegenoy date. The tiain rooms are on the first floor, and have
enortoug splayed doorcases in Greek Bevival style. The former dining
roos in the classical extension has @ ceiling owver 20 feet high. At

the rear pround floor ig the old kitchen with larpe fireploce where the
original iron epite and jacks are at present being reastored.

Frinted maps of Hottingham date from 1610, but the esrliest to sheow
reasonable house plans is that of 1744, and this records the basic
outline of the house m3g it ia today. This map showe & garden on the
opposite eide of the street, which also mppeare on & map of 1820
degcribed as '"Hr. Fellows' Vista'. A wvista was a foreal garden over
which a pleasing prospect could be afforded of the distant countryside
from the windows of the house, and it is known from other scurces that
Mr. Fellows was the owner of County House in 1820.

5



TRAGING THE HISTURY CF YOUR HOUSE-10

continued .-

The house is very fortunately depicted on an excellent view of

Hottingham from the south by Thomas Sandby in 1742 which is now in the
Castle Museus. It can be geen through the gap in the buildings om the
south side of High Pavement afforded by the Vista, and revesls that its
arpearance was very different to what it is today. The top floor

comprised & low attie storey with three gables facing the street, sugpesting
a 17th or very early 18th century daze.

Unlike provicus examples in thie series,; County Houge wae originally
privately-owned and poesesgee B set of title deeds dating from 1710 te 1833,
In this last vemr the houese wee gold to the county negistretes for use a=
Judpes' lodgings for the visiting Shire Hall judpges and has ressined in
county hende ever since, which explains the absence of any subsequent deeds.
The deeds show that a family named Hallowes were owner/occupiers from at
leaat that date to 1771 when it wes sold to the Fellows farily (who had
lived 4ip epother town house mext door). The Fellows' let the heouse out

for periods during the late 18th century but were in residence up to the
sale of 16335, From printed genealopical recerde 1t appears that -the
Hellowes wers @ branch of & miner Dérbyshire gentry family and ardent
supporters of the High Pavement Freshyterian (lster Uniterisn} chapel
nearly opposite. The Fellows', alsc Unitariane, were & prosperous merchant
family of silk hotiers and Iater bankers in the town.

The deeds show thet in 1728 %Willism Hallowes purchased property to the east
of the house (the aite of the classical extension) for conversiom into
stables, etc. and Tour years later bought the former Castle Inn opposite
which he 'demolighed in order to layrout his Vista, . Thigidate of g.1730

is coneistent with the style of the: lower stoircese and other early
Georgien festures which suggest that he extensively romodelled the house
and ite eurrcundings st that time. Heowewer, the fashion at this period
wag Tor flat parapetted fronteages, such =aa were built by the Fellows next
door and the dawtherns in Low Pavement, for example, and the gabled facade
would by then kave been considered very dated.

In the Nottinmghamshire Hecord Office is the wWill of Samiel Eallowes,
Williem's father, in 1715, ‘Who almbst certainly lived in this housa.
Very fortunately there ic with it & Probate inventeory of hiz goods and
ghettela, which include such items as his coach and mares (velued at £15)
but which slac mames 15 rooes. These can be: approodmately related to
the pucleus of the present house and are the hall, preat parlour, littls
parlour, backward parlour, great chember, 1ittle chanber, inwerd chamber,
backward ghamber, menz' chamber; maids' ohamber, garret,. kitchen, pantry,
brewhouse and cellar. -

Following the aals by the Fellows family to the county magistrates in
183%% the house was extensively converted to f£it it for its nmew role as
Judgeg' lodgings. Some of the accounts relating to the convereion but
unfortunately not the plans survive asongat the offigisl county archives.
These indicate that this was almost certainly the pericd when the third
storey was raised in height and a straight frontage substituted for the
gables, the new ¢lassical extension added to the east, and the whole
bullding agein remodelled in the then-fashionsble Oreek Reviwval style.
The architecta were Henry Mosea Wood and James Hicholson of Nottinghsm
and the principal contractor was Thamas Barnshaw,; whe was paid nearly
£3,000 for the bullding work, then a subastantlel sum. Bills survive
for' many of the fixturez in the building, including cne for 7% from the
atavaeley Iron Works in Derbyshire for Bupplying Tthe classicel columns of
the new extension, which although beering the appesrance of stone are in
fact of cast iron.

Brems
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TREACTHNG THE HISTORY OF YOUR HOUSE=10
continued ...

The history of the 17th century house and its predecessors on this site
ie not kpowm with certeinty, but the sarliest deed of 1910 records the
names of previous ownera and tenants back to the early 17th century.

The first recorded owner was Humphrey Bonner, an influentiasl Alderman
who was thres times Mayor of Nottingham in the Elizsbethan and Jacchean
period. An earlier owner of the site may well have been William Halifax,
8 wealthy medimeval wool merchant; who certainly awned n—operty in the
area in the 15th century. Halifax Flace, to which County House has rear
accass, was named after him.

A variety of records such as lstters, diaries and newspapere shed light om
the livea led by the femilies who lived in County Houee or the Judgee who
Iodged here. In the Georgien period John Fellows was acquainted with
Domual Taylor Coleridge, whose cnrrespondence sugmests thot he may have
vigited the Fellowa' in the house in 17%6. &ir Charles Fellows, &
diztinguished HMiddle Hazstern archasolopizt, waa bhorn here in 7797. The
letters of Tom Moore, the Irish poet, show that he -dined hers with

Mra. Fellows in 1527. And finally 5ir Charles Watkin Williams, an Assize
Judge, died in compromising circumstances in a house of ill-repute whilst
lodging here in 188L!

Ir conclusion, a8 thiz praperiy is of some architectural wretensions the

vericus fashiopeble festurea nan he dated and allogated o thefir respective
periods,. As 8 pentleman's residence for mich of its 1ife the histories of

the families involved are far easier to trace. Tha zet of title deede provides
the bagic history of the changes and nlterations betwean 1710 and 1833 but

they ceace then as the property has not changed hemds since. Howewer, the
afficial records of the purchasing body - the county authority - shed fu:rther
1ight on its subseguent history. FMurther informetion on the history of this
bullding can be found in an article by the author in the 'Transsctions of the
Thoroton Soclety', Vol. 78, 1975,

acion

In the next desue @ Further local: case studies.

.

COUNCIL FOR THE FROTECTICON OF RURAL ENGLAND {MOTTS. BRANCH)
VISIT TC TEVERSAL VILILAGE ON SATURDAY, 11th JULY, 1681

Hembers of the Trust are invited to join

tiembers of the CPRE on a visit to Teversal. Teversal iz a few miles west of Hanefinld

between ¥.71 and A.617.
The village iz & gonssrvation Area and
contains some attractive and interesting _ : :
buildings, ineluding the Hall (1767} 1 The cost, 1nclud1ngltge. ig £1.25 per
the Rectory (017 end 018). The Church ig Forson and anyohe wishing to take pazt
described by Pevener as ‘ofie of the mast ghould contact the Secretary of the

rewverding village churches in the County'. ok ;
Mies L.H. fymaley,
The progrogramme iz as follows:=- 7 Unpee Glose,
Burtan Joysce,
2.30 paiis ¥eet near the Church qnttlnﬁham. =
8.30 - .15 Talk and teur of village and Telephane: Burton Joyce 2681
Church Ea @oon ac pos=2ible please, and not later
4,50 p.m. Tea {provided by Teversal then st July.

Women's Institute)

*** The guide on this cceasion is Mr. W. Cley-Deove, sn oxpert on Teversal willage ***

- B =



FEES FOR
PLANNTING AFFLICATIONS

Iraft regulations to provide for fees for
plenning applications were laid before

Parliasment on 17%h February by the Secretary

af Btate for the Znvircnment. Powsrs ta
do B0 were containsd in the Local
Government Flamning and Land Ask.

Fees for planning applications becomo
chargeable on lat April, 1981 amd must be
paid to logal planning authorities. The
feos are designed to off-set the costs of
development confrol.

EBroadly, fess will be charged in relation
to the scalse of the proposed cevelopseant
gnd will be for applications for planming
permission, for apyroval of 'reserwved
matters’ wheresn cutline plenning
permission hes already beepn received, and
for consent to diszplay advertisements.
ligted building consent applications and
eppeals against planning decisions will not
attrackt 8 fee.

Cutline applicaticns for bulldings will be
charged st 240 per.i hectare, subject to &
maximum fes of £7,000. In these casas,
subsequent applicstions on more detailed
matters will stiract a Turther fee.

Full applications cor applications en
detailed matters will cost &40 per
regidential unit with a meccimum of 2,000
ar £40 per sguare metres for non-
residential dewelomment with & ceiline of
PN L

Applicatians for the erection of plant anc
m#chinery are charged at the sams rate as
for residential developmenk. The winning
gnd working of minerals is charged at £20
per <1 hegtare subject tTo s maximum of

£33, 000

MEFMORIES OF LAXTOH

My Iifetime Hemories of Laxtom ie an
illustrated booklet by Fran: Moody,
who was born im the willape and Jived
there until after his Fist birthdey.

Alrveady the work has aroused interest
ameng historians, students, fermersa,
land apgepta, country lovers and
geheol children.

There are a number of exempiicns and
Erecial casesa Digabled people are not
required to find a fee for applicetiona
invelving improvement of means of accesa
to their houses or for chenges withip
them to make their lives a bit easigr.
Anyone who would norcally be free to
develop without needing planning permission,
but which freedom hae been curtailed by
Order = guch 28 an Article & Directiom, =
will not have to pay for perpisaion to
develop. After all, hia friend three
gtreets away does not even have to have
permission to build a storm perch or B
amall conservatory at the back of his
houss .

Fences, shoep fronts and buildings of less
than 40 squars metres will attract a fee
of ¥£20 g5 will house extensicne and car
parks unleas they ere parmitted develop-
ment under the Oeperal Development Urder.
A flat fee of £40 will be charged for
application=s for change of use, playing
fields and advertiszing hoardings.

The Regulations apply to England and Wales
only but it is underetood that comparable
Fepulations for Seetland will shortly be
laid before Parliament.

Draft Statutory Inetrument. The Town &
Country Planning (Fees for Applications
and Deemed Applications) Eesulatinﬂs 1581,
£1.70. EM&t. ISEN o 11 018513 8.

oodag

Heritage Outlook March/April 1951.

HSome remarkable photographe are
included topebtber with poems about
country life.

The boocklet is privately published
and ie aveilable at 1,060 per copyy
including post and packing.
Talephone Manafield AL2ZEF0. for
details.
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By Jdatin.SBavarn

At the last Council of Management Meeting of the Trust & resolution was made
to undertake the repair of the dilapidated dovecotes in the County of Nottingham.

The problem with dovecotes ie that they are seuslly of no use to their owvners -
unless they wish to keep pigeonsy and very often their shepe and their siting
makes for difficultice in Tinding &n alternative ueec.

However, they have one advantage whick could be their salwvation and that is their
Eizea Generelly, they are simple buildings guite modest in size coopared with
other buildipgs st rizk, snd with zome crganised effort & hody such a5 the Truet
eoiild teke the County deovecotes under its wing end arguanlse the repair and
regtoraticon of thege. Dovecotes seam to foll into two categories in this
Countys Firstly, the manorial and ecclesiastical proup and secondly, the fars-
stead Frolp.

The firset group are robust, round or rectangular, free standing and of stone,
they are solidly biilt snd have lasted for centuriea without much sattertion.

The second, in Hottinghamshire, are genarally of brick although there are some
gtone examples, btuilt into the Ffarcstead proup usually on firet floore although
agein there are examples of free standing dovecotes on the farmstead. Thess
heve usually stood for generaticns without much atiention.

The tuildings are at risk because thers is always a lack of money an the part eof
those who own them. Hobody can ba entirely delighted te spend money on
something which to them is a liability; and because of lack of encoursgement from
Bodies such as the Trust little pets dome to these forpgotten buildings.

The structures heing very aimple in their ceoncept and thelr fipish lend
themselves to job creation achemes simed at opportunities for young psople to
learn & trade. With proper sapervieion, B willing workfarce of five people and
goma modest financial assistance with the ccet of materisls, moat of our
remaining dovecctes could be put back into an acceptable arder within a matter of
weeka. One team of workers could repair their way through the County dovecotes
and learn a lot about building materials, methods of constructicn and manapement
of small projects. 2

4 modest Tepair would sase the pressure on finding a nmew use. The buildings are
parfectly capable of standing for years without use or attention provided they
pro made sound to start witk and are inspected ammually to make good weather
damapge, Vandalism is not a problem on most because of the siting.

This does not of course imply thet it is not necessary to find an alternative
uge, but cne hag to be realistic shout the possibilities. If the building is
free standing and in ite own srounds, then the difficulby is less than for one
thaet is mixed up with the farmstesd or surrounded by other structures.

W



DOVECOTES AT RISK IH NOTVINGHAMBEHIRE
cantinved ...

For those buildings capable of re-use let us go g1l out
to put them back into the community sghin, provided
alwave thet their charactor and detail is not lost in
the change.

For those that csooet find ancther user let them become
the guardians of a emall and permanent exhibhition
illustrating the keeping of pigeone through the ages.

The guardianship of the structure could be vested in
the Parish; if the owners are not willing to undertzlke
the task. Sofsone could agres to hold the key and
perhaps during the holidays or tourist sesson they
could make themselves responsible for Keeping 8n eys on
tha dovecote. Perhaps they may be pergusded to sct =a
keeper and to encoursge donations or sponsarship to
keep the atructure in goad repair.

N dovecote trail throuph the County could not only
provide the basis for an enjoyable outing for visitors
but would gpive considerabls encourapgesant to thoses whao
do not often pet abiout to see and arpreciate the
Hottinghamshire countryside. The nusber of dovecolbes
in Ehiz Guunt;.r oould I!rq#ir.ln the material for half o
dozen trails.

These structures could provide educational facilities
for small groups of children to wisit and record their
finds. A piece of hietary assall enouph to approciete
in one lesson and & lasting and three dimensionsl
reminder of fimes lonp past.

T, -
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DOVECOTES AT RISK IN HOTTINGE/MERIRE
aantinued .

The Trust would not wish to acouire these buildinpes before it became involved in
repair. If an owner wished to give the building to the Truast for safe keeping,
with = right of access te it at all times for visite and maintensnce. s8¢ puch the
batter. If however, the owner wished to retein the tuilding or the land-on
which it is situated the Trust would respect this views 11 the Trust would
ask for, is mpascnable sccese snd Bn wnderstending that the owner would not
deliberately allow the building to be neglected or misused. Indesd it would be
hoped that when ownere reslised the genuins eoncern of the Trust foz the eafety
of these buildings, one would envisege (2nd certainly hope) that cwners would
Jointly co-operate with the Trust to ensurs the continnity of thess dovecotes.

If a project such as this is to get off the ground the Trust ‘needs the help of
many pecple, and it is sure thet mapy people will come forward with idess apd
advice on whet to de. The Trust slsg needs peopls who are prepared to work aes
well ae talk and the support of many orgapisstions could be enlisted to clear
cut the buildings, cut down grass and mettles and remove rubbish.

Interested volunteers and interested groups would be most welcome for not only
could they pave the way for the Youth Opportunities Proprammes to contribute
effectively but alsa they might bhe persueded To et =2 gusrdians of the dovecote
aftervards.

Forhops they night evern wish to keep pipeons in itl

Let 1981/1982 be the "Year of the Dovecote!" for the Mottinghamshire Building
Preservation Truct snd let the Trust meke o peositive coniributicn to the reptenticn
of our Building Heritage. The Trust does not have to buy & building, it can
repeir somecne élse'e dovecote. The Trust would peln suppert, credibility and
perhaps rocopnition and & few unempioved youngsters would gain a sense of

murpose and @ knowledpe of part of our domestic historys

IF YOU ¥EEL YOI COULD SUFFORT THL TREST, T THIS WCRTHWHILE YVENTUHE, please
contact Jobhn Severn, who iz ope of the Trust's technical advisers dediceted o
daing something shout these bulldings, =t 114 Villiers Road, Yest Bridgford,
Nottinghom, NE2 6FE = & post card or letter please, 1T at all poseible, =& his
'thanes never seem to &6top ringing and he has his oifice fto run.

Here are 8 few waya in which you ceuld help the "Year of the Doveeote'; there
are many more ond if you ecdn suzzest other ways the Trust will be delighted —
the Trust peedsi=

EAE OWNERS: to pive their buildinpgs or to lend thed to us. In return we will
argenise the repair of the buildings and carry out inspections at
intervals. We would like to mount an exhibition im the davecots
end would hope for pecple to vieilt the building.

Exs PPOMBORS: who would provide materdisals for the repeir of the dowecotes 1n
generel or to sponscr the repeir of specific etructures. An
ecknowledgment of the help glvepn would be moupnted insids sach
Structure.

PEEOSPONSOES D who would help with treneveort so that materdels could be teken ic
Gites and perhaps alsc lend the Trust eguipment to do & job.

e HEVPEEST whe would support the csuse in whatever way they felf able, either

by physical help before, during, or after repair on any or on
specific uildings.

=



DOVERCTES AT RISKE IN NOTTIMNOHAMSHTRE
continued .e=

¥E® HELPERS: who would organise the opering and running of the dovecote when
repaired &nd available far viaitors.

*** HELPERS: who would carry out recording or research to provide a somprehensive
racord of the dovecotes of Nottinghamshire.

*** HELPERS: who would design, make up and set up the exhibitions.

*¥¥ DOMATIONS: for the purchose of materiale snd equipment. The Trust will
heve a separate "Dovecote" account and will keep mccurate records
of asfpenditure on each project. If donatione are given for work
on 8 specific dovecote then an asgurance that the money will be
spent op thet pertigular buildines will be given., Think, if 10
people give S0p that makes £5,00 and this will buy, perheps,; 50
aecondhend tiles, enough perhaps to keep the wet out of ane dovecote.

*a* INFORMATION: It is vitel that we collect informetion in the form of articles,
documents, boocks snd phetosraphs of dowveootes in this County. If
you do not wish to give the source of information, please lend it to
1= to copy end return to you. Think that you may be the only
poarson who has access to the detail of o particular buwilding. Your
help could ensure its corract repair.

Plegoe remember what William Merrie the founder of the Society fTor
the Protection of Ancient Buildinge felt abeout our Building Heritage.
In 1877, he was at poins to peint out that we are only guardians of
our building heritage. It i5 up toc us to see thet which hes been
hended down to ue is passed on by u= to our children, in a condition
better thap thet in which we recelived it, My worde, not his, bui
they relete well to devecotes,  Host are in & pretty poor state
boday and now we heve the cppertunity to put them right and hand
them en to others in pood conditions

To let these buildings go would be a tragedy, we are, perhaps, the last generation
abkle to sswe thap.

RO oee

HEPT COACH TOUR - SATURDAY, 5th SEFTIMBEER

The Trust, having pronounced the year John Severn

1081/82 as being the Year of the Dovecote,

(members will have read the artiele above)

will hope to meke visits, on it=s conoh

tour booked for Saturday, Sth September, to
some of the more important and interesting

dovecotes in ths County.

whether or net they wish to go on tnmis
cuting. Beplies fo Dr. Middleton by
20th June; please.

A5 will be appreciated from the article,
dovecotes are buildinga which could he
eagily repaired and looked affer by the
Trust, and it is hoped that sufficient
support from the membership will allow
these interesting yet otherwise neglected
buildinge to be refurbished and glven &
new lesze of life. The support from
members by Joining our comch tour Bnd any
other pragtical help given by nesbars and
non-members alike will be very much
apprecigted. Onless organisations like
ours can pave the way for the buildings

The intention is to bock a comch which will
leave the County Hall car park at 10 o'elock
to vialt as meny dovecoltes ag possible,
arriving at Thrumpton for tes apnd finishing
back &t County Hall between € and 7 p.m.

in the evening.

In order to ensure sufficient numbers and
to make worthwhile not only bocking the

coach but arranging for tea at Thrumpton
Hall the Trust would be grateful if members £o bs repatrad very Taw will he laft for

s HREXCHAG, Gt RHA B GRCAED SRRES 511P1 oir children to appreciate in the futurs.
- 13 =



THE KIRKEY & DISTRICT CONSERVATION SOCIETY

Annesley Old Chureh

— . — . | | —

The now redundant "A11 Bginte™ Church
which stande beeide Annesley Hall oo the
A.514 almest certainly has Saxon origins.
Until fairly recent times Annesley village
surrcunded the Thurch and Hall but there
ara now no obvious signs of ite existence.

The pew Church was built at the turn of the
.century nearer to the new colliery village
of Annesley and the old Church was not used
thereafter. It graduslly decayed after
lead was stripped from the roof during the
first World War apd in 1945 part of the
raoocf collapsed.

Over the yesrs & few historic itemz such as
the Norman font, the marble fipure of &
Chaworth Knight and the stone effigy of
Leonia de Haimea, eignifying & heart burial,
were rescued and remeved ta the new Church.
In 1975 8 roof besm fell and damaged the
Chawerth Achievement of 1686, =o the Kirkhy
apd District Compervetion Sceciety contacted
the Vietoria and Albert Museum for advice.
Their representative came and described the
piege of plasterwori as unique and a thing
of great beauty, but thought that it could
net be moved in coe piece and that it would
certainly cost thousanda of pounds to
restore it. The Scolety removed it Srom
the wall themselves and arranged to have it
restored. for a fraction of that price by &
master plasterer, Bill Seliter of Leeds, who
ig often consulted on work at nearby
Hardwick Hall, The Achievement is now
gafe in the new Church.

For many years there howve heen dehatss on
the futura of the tuilding asnd tha ultimate
disposal of the churchyard. The Church is
degignated as an Ancient Monument but, as
reported in a8 previocus newsletter, last
year the Church Commissiomers obtained
permisaion from the Secretary of State for
total demolition. The Conservation
Society have pressed for retention of at
least part of the gutline of the Church and
for the gravestons=a to be left as they
stand at present and, if possible, the
acquisition of the site by Ashfield
District Council and a decision is still
awaited.

aylvia Sinfield, Secretary

I have seen the Church Ceemissicners'
Arghitects' plans, and they are eaving as
much &4 possible of the btuilding and the
result should bte & rether 'romantic!
outline which is most acceptable if it i=
pasEed.

International Byron Saciety

On April 25th the International Eyron
Society made their annusl pilgrimege to
the area. Thay lunched at Bestwaod
Ledge and then went on te Newstead Ahbey ™
where a talk was given by Nottingham
City Council's frt Director, Mr. Brian
Loughborough, as it was the 50th
enniversary of the County'es taking over
the fbbey. After towring the Abbey our
Cheéirman guided them te fAnnesley Hall
and Church, although they had to view
them at & distance because of the
dreadful anowy conditions. They then
went to the Acacia Avenue Centre where
the Annesley Women's Imstitute provided
tea, and Canon Frank Lyons gave a talk
on Annesgley Church and its connections
with Lord Byron.

It was agreed that our Sepeiety should
gend an annual report on the Church's
preservation te the Byron Socisty.

They then went on to held a memarial
pervice for Byron st Husknall Church.

Profeseor Leelie Merchand of America
wBs on the tour - he is the world's
leading authority on Byron and has
recently published the T1th Velume of the
Definitive Bdition of Byren's letters.
There were aleo pllgrims from Japan
amenget the group, which included
Fre, Elma Dangerfield, Director of the
Syron Sogiety, Mr. Michael Regs, Vice—
President, and Hiss Lucy BEdwamis, the
Crganiger and Secretary.

In spite of the weather this proved to be
a moet worthwhile and enjoysble occasion.

oaloo
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The following FREEE MOTICE is reprintsd for the information of Trust members:-

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE FISHERIES AND FOOD

Whitehall Flace, London, SWIA2HH

Aprdl 30, 1351

LAXTON ESTATE

In a VWritten Reply to a Question by Mr. Richard Alexander M.P., in the House of
Commepe todey, asking vhether he has completed the sale of the Laxton BEstate and 1if

he would meke a statement, Mr. Jeery Wigpin, H.F.,

Parlismentary Secretary, |

Einistry of Agriculture; Fisheries and Food, said:

"Tha House will recsll that 1 announced on Kovember 28, 1979 that the Laxton
kstate wes to be included in the programme of land sslea being carried out
by this Ministry a8 provided for io the Vhite Paper on the Govermment's

Expenditure Flans for 1080/81.

I made it clear at that time, and subseguently,

that the esale was being treated 85 a special case snd the sstate would only
be offered to those abkle to pive the necessary assursnces about the future of
the system snd the welfsre of the tenants.

"I am gled to inform the House that the terms of B ssle have now been agreed

by this Ministry with the Crown Estate Commissicneres for a price of £1 millicn.
This price took intoc agoount a mumber of constraints which are dus to the
Ministry'e policy of management resulting from the unigue rele and structure

of the setete.

I feel sure that the House will weleomse the transfer of this

historie estate to & body of sush 2 high reputation.

"The Crown Estate Commissioners have given me an underteking that it will be
their intenkbion Lo conbinue 88 st present orpanised, the Cpen Fleld System
and associated customs which are the prineipal features of this histaric
estate, and thatreasonable sducotional facilities will continue to be made

arailshble.”

Hotea:

The Laxton Estate comprises some 1,830
gcres in 15 fully equipped farms and six
emallholdings. The average eize of the
farme is sbeut 110 scree.  IThe villege
hostelry also forms part of the Istate
and is for dispesal tegether.with four
cwdll domestic dwellings.

The land wss offered to the Hinistry by
the late BEarl Manwers in 1952 and is the
lagt survivipg village with open fields
cultivated in the way common to England
in the Middle Azes. The Hindieter of
bpriculture is currently Lord of the
Manor.

The system is still administered by the
Court Leet of the Manor which conasists
of all the occupiers of land at Laxton.
The Bailiff, a Steward &nd a jury of 12
men have power to inspect the fislds
and fine any tenant abusing the system.

RNns.

Half the fines go towards providing
refreshment for the Court and half go to
the Lord of the Manor.

Ihe tenants of the propertles to be sola
heve been notified.  All disposals will
be spbject fo tenancy and the Minieter's
tenante will have full security of
tenure under the fAgricultural Holdings
Legislntion.

The Crown Estate, which includes some
260,000 agres of agricultural land in
England and Scotlsnd, forms part of the
hereditary possessicng of the Crown and
ig therefore #n apwropriate environment
for the historic Laxton Estate. It is
maneged in accordance with the provieicns
of the Crown listate Act 1961, by &
Board of eight Commissioners, who ere
appointed by Her Majesty the Gueen, with
the duty of maintaining and developing
the Eetste. Thelr Chairman is the

T#.Hon. the Esrl of Crawford and Balcarres.

e



MUSEUM CF

Fahti BUILOINGS

in early 19th century fermyerd complex is beginning to take
chape at the Chiltern Cpen Adr Muaeum, lewlands Park, Chalfont
5t. Giles. The Miseum hag saved Tour ancient Tarm bulldings
from destruction and has decided to rebuwlld them as a farm,
sddine octher appropriate buildimps that' become threatened plus
8 gmall collection of farm implements from the 18004.

The first tuilding to be reconstructsd in the farm complex is
a8 larpge Era,tmr},r Trom hpsaway Home Farm, Berkhemetesd, Herts.
Part of the pranary dates frow the 13th century.  An extension
was added in 4 pericd of apgricultural prosperity in the 90tk
century. like many specialised fars buildings, it was mede
redundant by chenges in farming techniques. It wis piven Lo
the Museum by Major Hadden-Paton, who alsc donated some timber
for the reconstraction. [Durine the winter of 1976/7 it was
carefully diemantled by volunteers and tranaported to the
Museum site.

Bepaire to the granary's timbers hove been carried aut in the
Mugeum workshop and its complex frame of owver 400 timbera has
now hesn erected at Newland Parle. The joiets at first floor
level and =zome of the internal partitione hawve also been fiftted
end the roof structure le tow Dedng sseembled, Work has
continuedthrough the wipter to heve the gransry resdy for
viewing by the public when the Magseum opens in the earlsy Sucmer.

Other buildings awalting reconsbrustion in the Tarm complex
are & large barn from Hill Perm, Chalfont 2t. Peter; BPucks,
end two buildings from the early 19th century College Farm,
Harsworth, an open fronted cattle shed end & stehls for
working horses with & cart shed atlached.

The Chiltern Upen Air Museum is planning to open to the public
on Pundeys throughout the Summer of 1981. fAmong the
interestine buildines op view will be = replica of an ireon age
houee, & gruck barn from the lete 715tk or sarly 16th century,
B 19th century oart shed and & 19th gentury baker's granary.
Several other bulldinga hawve bhean aaved from deeldition,
carefully diamantled and are awaiting reconstruction at the
Huseun .

Puilding Ccnmservation March 1981.
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